
“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance between 
economic development and preservation of our quality of life. We help create a dynamic and vital City by providing quality, 

cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and organizations in the constant pursuit of 
excellence.” 

Page Item STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order and Flag Salute

2. Roll call

3. Special Presentations & Announcements:  D & S Canine Solutions – Dan Bell, Certified Trainer

4. Public Comment:
Welcome to our City Council meeting. The Council invites the public to address the Council on matters on the 

Consent Agenda and matters not listed on the agenda that are within the Council’s subject matter jurisdiction. 
If the Public wishes to comment on matters that are on the agenda, the Council will request comment when 
the matter is heard. The Council reserves the right to limit public comment on matters that are outside its 
subject matter jurisdiction. 

The City Council may regulate the total amount of time on particular issues and for speakers (typically 3 minutes). 
The Council may place additional time limits on comments, to ensure members of the public have an 
opportunity to speak and the Council is able to complete its business. A group may be asked to choose a 
spokesperson to address the Council on a subject matter, or the Council may limit the number of persons 
addressing the Council whenever a group of persons wishes to address the council on the same subject matter. 
Speakers may not cede their time to another. 

The Mayor manages the City Council meeting with a commitment to effective engagement while maintaining 
a positive, respectful decorum. The Mayor will typically start the Public Comment period sharing the following 
reminders relating decorum and Brown Act compliance efforts: 

 This is the time for the public to address the Council on matters on the Consent Agenda or matters NOT on
the Council Agenda.  This will be a comment period only.  If the public wishes a response they may provide
their contact information to the Deputy City Clerk.

 The Mayor will recognize each speaker in an orderly fashion. Most often, the Mayor will call the speakers
whom have signed in first and shall then call for those who would like to address the Council but whom did
not sign in by inviting them to come to the front of the room and wait to be recognized to speak. Once the
speaker is recognized, the speaker will address the Council only and shall provide comment from the public
microphone. Public Comment will typically not be taken from any person shouting from the audience.

 No heckling or shouting from the audience at a speaker shall be permitted.

 The City Council may ask “clarifying” questions only. Due to equity and Brown Act concerns, the Council will
avoid engaging in dialogue or debate.

 If there is an item of great community significance/interest and is within the Council’s subject matter
jurisdiction, the Council may request the item be agendized for further consideration at a subsequent Council
meeting. 

Mt. Shasta City Council Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Mt. Shasta Community Center, 629 Alder Street  

Monday, September 12, 2016; 5:30 p.m. 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 1



Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, September 12, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

5. Meeting Recess (As Necessary)

6. Council and Staff Comments

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS 
Page 7. Consent Agenda - The City Manager recommends approval of the following Consent Agenda

items. All Resolutions and Ordinances on this agenda, or added hereto, shall be introduced or
adopted, as applicable, by title only, and the full reading thereof is hereby waived.

a. Approval of Minutes: Regular City Council Meeting August 22, 2016, Special City Council
Meeting August 18, 2016 

b. Acceptance of Brown Act Committee Minutes:  Active Transportation Committee, July 24,
2016 

c. Approval of Disbursements: Accounts Payable, 8/17/16, 8/18/16, 8/24/16, and 8/31/16;
Total Gross Payroll and Taxes: For Periods Ending 8/14/16 and 8/28/16. (Finance
Director)

d. Approve of Aiello, Goodrich, & Teuscher Audit Agreement, Resolution CCR-16-38

Page 8. Council Approval of Sewer and Water Rate Study Consultant Agreements
  Background:  The City advertised a Request for Qualifications from June 15, 2016 through 
July 15, 2016. Four Statements of Qualifications were received.  A Consultant Selection Committee 
reviewed and ranked all SOQ’s. The Committee selected PACE Engineering as the highest ranked 
Consultant to perform the work. 

 Report By:  Rod Bryan, Public Works Director 

  Recommended Council Action:  Staff requests the City Council adopt Resolution CCR-16-37,  
authorizing the City Manager to execute necessary Agreement amendments and task orders    
between the City of Mt. Shasta and PACE Engineering, Inc. for the purpose of providing a Utility Rate 
Study. 

Page 9. Landing Development Plan Review
Background:  The Roseburg property, also referred to as “The Landing”, is a 127.5 acre Planned 
Development. The majority of the development is owned by the City of Mt. Shasta. The 
property development plan was approved and the property annexed in 2000 (CCO-00- 
01). Part of the annexation process was the creation of a development plan and 
Environmental Impact Report. The development plan outlines land use, development 
standards, and on-site infrastructure improvements. 

Report By:  Juliana Lucchesi, City Planner 

Recommended Council Action:  No Council action, information only 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 2

4-35

36-40

41-59



Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, September 12, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

Page 10. Awarding Construction Contract for STIP Funded Guardrail Project
Background:  On Friday August 26, 2016 bids were received for the Mt. Shasta Boulevard Guardrail 
Project.  The lowest and sole bidder was Apex Fence Co. Inc. with a bid amount of $99,425. Pace 
Engineering has evaluated the bids and is recommending that the City award the Construction 
Contract to Apex Fence Co. Inc. 
Report By:  Rod Bryan, Public Works Director 
 Recommended Council Action:  Staff respectfully requests the City Council approve Resolution  

     CCR-16-39 awarding the bid for the Big Lakes Water Line Replacement Project to Shasta Services, Inc. 
     dba Timberworks. 

CITY COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTING PERIOD 

11. Council Reports on Attendance at Appointed/Outside Meetings

12. Future Agenda Items (Appearing on the agenda within 60-90 days):
a. Cannabis Dispensary Briefing – 9/26/16
b. Approve Art Agreement for Parker Plaza – 9/26/16
c. Cannabis Dispensary Ordinance – 10/10/16
d. Smoking Limitations – 10/24/16
e. Possible Downtown Traffic Flow Changes/Request for Qualifications (RFQ) – 10/24/16
f. Landing Costs for Future Discussion with the County – 10/24/16
g. Review of CCO-98-05, Extraction and Exportation of Groundwater – 11/14/16
h. Orchard Property Annexation – 11/14/16
i. Community Building Use Agreement – 11/28/16
j. Crystal Geyser Industrial User Permit – TBD, Pending County CEQA

13. Closed Session:  Anticipated Litigation pursuant to §54956.9(b), one potential case

14. Adjourn
Availability of Public Records: All public records related to an open session item on this agenda, which are not exempt 

from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are distributed to a majority of the legislative body will be 
available for public inspection at City Hall located at 305 North Mt. Shasta Blvd., Mt. Shasta, CA at the same time the public 
records are distributed or made available to the members of the legislative body. Agenda related writings or documents 
provided to a majority of the legislative body after distribution of the Agenda packet will be available for public review 
within a separate binder at City Hall at the same time as they are made available to the members of the legislative body. 

The  City of Mt. Shasta  does  not  discriminate on the  basis of race, color, national origin,  sex, religion,  age or disability 
in  employment or provision of  services.   In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons requiring 
accommodations for a disability at a public meeting should notify the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting at 
(530) 926-7510 in order to allow the City sufficient time to make reasonable arrangements to accommodate participation in 
this meeting. 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 3

60-63



Mt. Shasta City Council Regular City Council Meeting DRAFT Minutes 

Mt. Shasta Community Center, 629 Alder Street 
Monday August 22, 2016; 5:30 p.m. 

 
 

“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance 
between economic development and preservation of our quality of life.  We help create a dynamic and vital City 

by providing quality, cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and 
organizations in the constant pursuit of excellence.” 

 
STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order and Flag Salute:   At the hour of 5:33 p.m. Mayor Jeffrey Collings called the meeting to order 
and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Roll Call:  Council Members Present:   Councilmembers Morter, Harkness, Stearns.  Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, 
Mayor Collings 

         Council Members Absent:  None 
 
Council agreed to change the order of the agenda, holding Closed Session first, and reviewing the item regarding 
the Rate Study consultant agreement sooner. 
3. Closed Session:  Adjourned to Closed session 5:35 p.m. 

1. Public Employment, City Manager – Pursuant to Government Code §54957 
2.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9 

(two cases) 
        a.  City of Mt. Shasta vs. Ure 
        b.  City of Mt. Shasta vs. Quail Hill Estates 
 

Council Action:  City Attorney directed to continue negotiations. 
4. Public Comment: 

No public comment. 
5. Council and Staff Comments:   

Geoff Harkness, Councilmember – Bi-weekly update, sculpture project. 
Kathy Morter, Councilmember – Public sculpture project, compliments to Public Works, passing of Paul Boerger. 

6. Council Approval of Sewer and Water Rate Study Consultant Agreement 
Review by Acting City Manager Parish Cross.  Paul Reuter of PACE Engineering reviewed the proposal.  Clarifying 
questions from Council.   

COUNCIL ACTION:   Approve PACE Engineering to perform professional services with the City at the agreed upon 
rate with the understanding that there will be further Resolutions with the specific language contracts returning 
to Council at the next meeting for approval.  Mr. Reuter suggested altering the agreement included in the agenda 
packet to remove the sewer portion, and amend the current State-Mandated Project agreement for the sewer 
rate study. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Councilmember Stearns 
SECOND:    Councilmember Harkness 
AYES:          Councilmembers Morter, Stearns, Harkness, Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, Mayor Collings 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 4



City of Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 22, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS 

7.  Consent Agenda:   
COUNCIL ACTION:  Approved the following Consent Agenda items.  All Resolutions and Ordinances on this 
agenda, or added hereto, shall be introduced or adopted, as applicable, by title only, and the full reading thereof 
is hereby waived. 

a. Approval of Minutes:  August 8, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting 

b. Acceptance of Brown Act Committee Minutes:  Community Economic Development    
         Activities Committee (CEDAC) June 14, 2016 Minutes, Beautification Committee (BC) July 13, 
         2016 Minutes.  

c. Approval of Disbursements: Accounts Payable, 8/4/16 and 8/8/16; Total Gross Payroll and Taxes: 
For Period Ending 7/31/16  (Finance Director) 

d. Monthly Financial/Investment Report (Finance Director)    
e.      Surplus Equipment, CCR-16-36 

COUNCIL ACTION:  Approve consent agenda items a – e and CCR-16-36 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Councilmember Morter 
SECOND:    Councilmember Stearns 
AYES:          Councilmembers Morter, Harkness, Stearns, Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, Mayor Collings 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 
 
8.  Siskiyou Opportunity Center – Recycling 
Review by Muriel Howarth-Terrell, Finance Director and Councilmember Harkness.  Clarifying questions from 
Council. 
Councilmember Morter suggested surveying the community to determine what services are desired. 
Councilmember Stearns stated that Crystal Geyser has expressed interest in recycling and promoting recycling 
in Mount Shasta, and recommended that staff look into to partner with them. 

COUNCIL ACTION:   Approve payment for additional cost for recycling as recommended by staff until the City can 
develop new charges for refuse collection for business and residential, and bring the matter before the City. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Councilmember Stearns 
SECOND:    Councilmember Morter 
AYES:          Councilmembers Morter, Harkness, Stearns, Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, Mayor Collings 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None  
ABSTAIN:    None 
 
9.  Smith Sanitation – Refuse Removal During Transfer Station Closure 
Muriel Howarth-Terrell, Finance Director, gave a brief summary.  She suggested that Council table the item until 
the September 12, 2016 meeting for the purpose of gathering further information. 
COUNCIL ACTION:  Item tabled to the September 12, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting. 

10.  Broadband Update 
Mayor Collings reviewed the proposal from Columbia Telecommunications Corporation (CTC) Technology and 
Energy.  Clarifying questions and discussion. 

COUNCIL ACTION:   Approve payment of $33,333.34 to CTC pursuant to their proposal, subject to sister cities of 
Weed and Dunsmuir likewise approving their portions of the cost. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Councilmember Stearns 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 5



City of Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 22, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

SECOND:    Councilmember Morter 
AYES:          Councilmembers Morter, Harkness, Stearns, Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, Mayor Collings 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None  
ABSTAIN:    None 
 

             CITY COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTING PERIOD 

9.  Council Reports on Attendance at Appointed/Outside Meetings: 
Tim Stearns, Councilmember – Meeting with Craig Middleton, Executive Director of the Presidio Project 
Geoff Harkness, Councilmember – Community Economic Development Activities Committee (CEDAC) Meeting 
10.  Future Agenda Items (Appearing on the agenda within 60-90 days): 

COUNCIL ACTION:  Reviewed Items a through k.   

a. Annual Audit of City Finances – 9/12/16 
b. Adopt Landing Development Plan Resolution – 9/12/16 
c. Awarding Construction Contract for STIP Funded Guardrail Project – 9/12/16 
d. Cannabis Dispensary Ordinance – 9/26/16 
e. Noise Element for the General Plan – 10/24/16 
f. Smoking Limitations – 10/24/16 
g. Possible Downtown Traffic Flow Changes/Request for Qualifications (RFQ) – 10/24/16 
h. Landing Costs for Future Discussion with the County – 10/24/16 
i. Review of CCO-98-05, Extraction and Exportation of Groundwater – 11/14/16 
j. Orchard Property Annexation – 11/14/16 
k. Crystal Geyser Industrial User Permit – TBD, Pending County CEQA 

 

12.  Adjourn:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted by:  Kathryn M. Wilson, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 6



Mt. Shasta City Council Special City Council Meeting DRAFT Minutes 

305 N. Mt. Shasta Blvd. 
August 18, 2016; 7:30 a.m. 

 
 
 

“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance 
between economic development and preservation of our quality of life.  We help create a dynamic and vital City 

by providing quality, cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and 
organizations in the constant pursuit of excellence.” 

 
 

1.   Roll call:  
       At the hour of 7:37 a.m. Mayor Collings called the meeting to order. 
       Present:   Councilmember Tim Stearns, Councilmember Geoff Harkness, Mayor Collings 
       Absent:  Mayor Pro-Tem Burns, Councilmember Morter 
2.  Coffee with City Council: 

Laurel Kessler – Environmentally friendly cleaning products and landscaping, posting medical orders 
in conspicuous places. 
Roslyn McCoy – Weekly update, well production, easements, broadband, infrastructure. 
John Adamson – Street repair, election, fuel reduction. 
 
Councilmember Harkness left the meeting at 8:11 a.m. 

3.  Adjourn: 

At the hour of 8:35 a.m. the meeting was adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted by:  Kathryn M. Wilson,  Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 7



 
Active Transportation Committee Meeting June 24, 20161 

Mt. Shasta Active Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes 
Mt. Shasta City Hall, 305 North Mt. Shasta Blvd  

Friday, June 24, 2016; 8:30 a.m.  
Approved as Submitted 

  
  

“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance 
between economic development and preservation of our quality of life.  We help create a dynamic and vital City 

by  providing quality, cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and 
organizations in the  

constant pursuit of excellence.”  
  

ITEM   STANDING AGENDA ITEMS  

1.  
  

Call to Order & Roll Call: Melanie Finding called the meeting to order at 8:35 A.M. 
Committee Member Attendees: Melanie Findling, Mike Sojka, Mike Quinn 
Staff Attendees: Juliana Lucchesi - City Planner 
Guest: Ken Ryan 

2.  
  

Special Presentations & Announcements: Ken Ryan Presented the current status of the ATP funding 
request. It has been completed and approved by city council to move forward with funding request. 

3.  Public Comment:  
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to reasonably limit the length of individual comments and/or the total amount of time allotted 
to public comments.  For items which are on this agenda, speakers may request that their comments be 
heard instead at the time the item is to be acted upon by the Committee.  The Committee may ask 
questions but may take no formal action on items addressed during the Public Comment period except 
to direct staff to prepare a report or place the item on a future agenda.  

  COMMITTEE BUSINESS   

4.  Review and Approval of Minutes:  
a) ATC Draft Minutes for May 20, 2016 Meeting  

Recommended Action:  Minutes were approved unanimously by all members present without changes. 

5.  Report from Public Works Director Regarding Current City Projects 
Background: Monthly update on relevant public works projects. Report 
by: Juliana Lucchesi   
Recommended Action:  The Landing Plans are modified to include bike and pedestrian trails. The city is 
reviewing current bike parking policies in support of the ATC Master Plan. 

6.  Update on ROW Acquisition  
Background:  Council funded ROW acquisition for Midtown trail easements (trail and utility) in April of 

2015. Rod is working with the city engineer.   
Report by: Rod Bryan, Public Works Director  
Recommended Action:  Carry forward to next meeting  

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 8



 
Active Transportation Committee Meeting June 24, 20162 

7.  Recruitment of new ATC members  
Background:  Down to only three members, we need to recruit new members.  Several options were to 

discussed to include a published newspaper interview with Melanie to explain the responsibilities of 
the ATC, its accomplishments, and needs for additional community support. Additionally, suggestions 
were made to include vendor booths at various city events, as well as, continued use of personal 
contacts to recruit new members.  

Report by: Melanie Findling  
Recommended Committee Action:  Melanie to contact newspaper for interview. 

8.  ATC Response to CalTrans Hwy 89/So. Mt. Shasta Blvd. interchange improvement project.  
Background: ATC met in a special meeting in November to discuss ATC’s response to Caltrans’ project.  

Mike Sojka drafted a resolution for Council.  Update.  
Report by: Mike Sojka and Rod Bryan  
Recommended Committee Action:  Postponed until next meeting  

 
9.  Creating a GIS layer showing ATC’s projects  

Background:   Mike Sojka contacted a GIS specialist to help ATC develop a GIS layer depicting ATC 
projects.  Update.  

Report by: Mike Sojka 
Juliana accepted responsibility for this effort, and will report back with her progress after exploring 
current resources and capabilities. 
Recommended Committee Action:  Review at a later date  

10.  Pedestrian Safety Crossing Mt. Shasta Blvd. at Berryvale and Old McCloud.  
Background: ATC members have observed safety issues for pedestrians crossing MS Blvd. in at least these 

two locations.  
Report by:  Mike Sojka and Melanie Findling 
Juliana states she was already reviewing acquisition of portable signage that can be placed at areas of 
concern to better alert motorists of upcoming potentially dangerous pedestrian and bike traffic. 
  
Recommended Action:  Follow up at later meeting  

11.  UC Berkeley Recommendations  
Background:   UC Berkeley made traffic safety recommendations to the city of Mt. Shasta.  ATC wishes to 

follow up on those recommendations.  
Report by:  Mike Sojka   
Recommended Action:  Carry forward to next meeting 

12.  Dunsmuir to Weed Trail  
Background:   Update on the planning process for the Dunsmuir to Weed Trail  
 Report by:  Mike Sojka   
Recommended Action:  Carry forward to next meeting  

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 9



 
Active Transportation Committee Meeting June 24, 20163 

13.  Review of Master Plan Appendices E and G  
Background:   In an effort to keep the Bicycle Pedestrian Trails Master Plan current, ATC is reviewing 

sections that may need revisions.  The first sections are Appendices E and G.  ATC members were to 
review and will report suggested revisions.  

Report by: Melanie Findling  
Juliana will review the Master plan and present a proposal for better managing these items, and keeping 
it current. 
Recommended Committee Action:  Follow-up at future meeting  

14.  Discuss 2016 ATC Goals  
Background: Review ongoing projects and earlier goals, assign priorities and responsibilities.  
Report By: Chair and Committee Members  
Recommended Committee Action:  Carry forward to future meeting  

15.  Possible Action on Change in the Day/Time/Location and/or Frequency of Meetings  
Background:  The committee is currently meeting on the 3rd Friday of each month at 8:30 a.m., in the City 
Hall conference room.   
Report by: Chair  
Recommended Committee Action: Carry forward to future meeting  

  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

16.  At this time, members of the Committee may ask questions of staff, request that reports be made at a 
later date, or ask to place an item on the agenda, on any subject within the Committee’s jurisdiction:  
  

• Stellar Way Non-Motorized Access  
• Previously Dedicated Castle Alley to Non-Motorized Use Only  Bus Stops  
• Traffic Collision Data  
  

17.  Adjourn  
Meeting was adjourned by Melanie at 10:00 A.M.  

5  

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 10



 
 

 City Council Agenda Item # 7c 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Muriel Howarth Terrell, Finance Director  

Subject:  Approval of Warrants and Payroll 
 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff requests the Mayor and City Council Approve warrants paid including payroll benefits and 
withholding, and payroll distribution, in the amount of $526,302.73. 
 
Background & Summary: 

Approval of Check Numbers 38496-38609    $   381,662.52  

Total Payroll Distribution      $   103,085.28 

Total Payroll Taxes       $     41,554.93 

            $   526,302.73 

Financial Impact: 

Espenditures are consistent with the Budget that the City Council has adopted.  

Compliance with 2014-17 City Council Strategic Plan: 

The City Council’s leadership efforts to ensure adherence to the best possible financial 
practices and overall transparency falls under Strategic Focus IV – Grow Mt. Shasta Pride and 
Quality and the Municipal Responsibilities of Progressive Leadership and Financial Health and 
Economic Opportunity. 
 
Attachments: 

1.) Check Registers – 8/17/16, 8/18/16, 8/24/16, 8/31/16 

2.) ACH Payroll Distribution – 8/17/16, 8/31/16 

3.) EFTPS Reports – 8/23/16, 9/6/16   

 
 
 

 Regular  
x Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 11



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 12



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 13



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 14



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 15



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 16



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 17



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 18



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 19



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 20



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 21



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 22



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 23



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 24



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 25



 
 

City Council Agenda Item # 7d 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Muriel Howarth Terrell, Director of Finance  

Subject:  Audit Services 
 
 
Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution CCR-16-38, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta 
Approving an Agreement with Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher (AGT) for Independent Auditing of 
the City’s Financial Statements for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2016, 2017 and 2018. 
 
Background & Summary: 

The City of Mt Shasta’s annual financial statements have been audited by the local firm of 
Aiello, Goodrich and Teuscher (AGT) since 1984. The current agreement for audit services 
expired with the end of the 2014-2015 fiscal year’s financial statements. 
 
The award of audit committee contracts is a professional service engagement and the City is 
not required to go out for bid or award to the lowest bidder. There are essentially two schools 
of thought regarding audit services. One school holds that the organization should change 
auditors every few years so that the organization gains a fresh perspective on its financial 
operations. The other school holds that an auditor should develop an in depth familiarity and 
knowledge with an organization so that it can have better insights into the operation. 
 
Fourteen years ago in 2001, the Council indicated that they believed it was prudent for the City 
to periodically issue a Request for Proposals for audit services to keep the City in touch with 
the market, as well as to have some basis for judging the proposal from the current auditors. 
When this was done, the City received only one other proposal from all of the firms to which 
RFP’s were submitted, and that proposal was substantially higher than AGT’s. If we were to 
seek out another audit firm, it would likely come from Redding or Sacramento which would 
mitigate against both familiarity and the idea of buying locally in addition to the travel and 
lodging costs we do not incur at this time. 
 
The City approved resolution CCR 15-57, November 9th 2015 accepting the engagement with 
AGT to provide audit services for the next three fiscal years at a not to exceed fee of $17,500, 
$18,000 and $18,500 per year respectively, plus additional fees if a Single Audit Act reporting is 
required should the City have federal expenditures in excess of $500,000 in any year. This was 

 Regular  
X Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 26



2 

a no increase in the current and second year with only a slight increase of about 3% in the last 
year. The Single Audit Act fee has been around $1,500 for any year in which it might occur.  
AGT has returned to us with an increase in their prior proposal to audit the next three fiscal 
years in the amounts of $19,900, $20,400 and 20,900 for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2017 
and 2018 respecively plus the Single Audit Act fee of $1,500 sould a Single Audit be requires 
and an additional $750 for each additional major program beyond two programs. The auditing 
environment has changed significantly over the last decade with the advent of new regulations 
about financial reporting and how audits are conducted so these rates seem to be appropriate 
for the work involved.  
 
Staff is recommending that the City accept the proposal from Aiello, Goodrich and Teuscher for 
the next three year auditing cycle without going out for additional proposals this year. AGT is 
very familiar with the City’s financial situation and has always worked with the City on its 
financial issues to the degree that it can and still maintain its status as an independent auditor. 
The Finance Department has not received any inquiries about our audit needs or requirements 
since the last agreement was executed which is an indication that the market is not extremely 
competitive at this time. It is very unlikely that we would get a proposal in the range of that 
from AGT. 
 
Staff has prepared a resolution for Council approval authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
letter of agreement with AGT for audit services for the next three fiscal years. 
 

Financial Impact: 

The City Council annually approves budget expenditures to support the annual audit process.  
The budgeted expense is proportionally allocated to a variety of City operating funds.  
 

Compliance with 2014-17 City Council Strategic Plan: The City Council’s leadership efforts to 
ensure a thorough annual audit process conducted by a third party falls under Strategic Focus 
IV – Grow Mt. Shasta Pride and Quality and Municipal Responsibilities of Progressive 
Leadership and Financial Health and Economic Opportunity.   

Attachments: 

• Proposed Resolution CCR-16-38 
• Summary of Services from AGT 

 
 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 27



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 28



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 29



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 30



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 31



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 32



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 33



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 34



RESOLUTION NO. CCR-16-38 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
AUTHORIZING THE ENGAGEMENT OF AIELLO, GOODRICH, & TEUSCHER TO 

PERFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE CITY FOR 
FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2016, 2017 AND 2018. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the city of Mt. Shasta requires the independent audit of its financial statements in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized the services of Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher for many years; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff has recommended that the City continue with Aiello, Goodrich & 
Teuscher; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Aiello, Goodrich, & Teuscher to provide the 
audit of the financial statements for the next three years for the respective fees of $19,900, 
$20,400, and $20,900 plus an additional fee if Single Audit Act reporting is required. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta as 
follows: 
 

1.  The City Council approves the terms of engagement set forth in the attached 
proposal from Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher. 

2. The City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement for audit services with 
Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
DATED: September 12, 2016 
 

     CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
         

       Jeffrey Collings, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Kathryn M. Wilson, Deputy City Clerk 
 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 35



 
 

City Council Agenda Item # 8 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Rod Bryan, Public Works Director  

Subject:  Utility Rate Study 
 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff requests the City Council adopt the proposed Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute necessary Agreement amendments and task orders between the City of Mt. Shasta 
and PACE Engineering, Inc. for the purpose of providing a Utility Rate Study. 
 
Background & Summary: 
The City is in need of a comprehensive water and sewer rate study to establish a fair 
apportionment of costs to it’s customers. 

The City advertised a Request for Qualifications from June 15, 2016 through July 15, 2016. Four 
Statement of Qualifications were received.  

A Consultant Selection Committee reviewed and ranked all SOQ’s. The Committee selected 
PACE Engineering as the highest ranked Consultant to perform the work. 

PACE’s proposal was reviewed after the ranking and the attached Agreement, Scope of Work, 
and Cost Proposal was agreed upon. The final Not to Exceed (NTE) amount is $73,372 

Since each utility rate study will be funded from separate funding sources (i.e. the water rate 
study will be funded by Drinking Water State Revolving Fund planning grant and the sewer rate 
study will be funded by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund planning grant), staff is 
recommending the amendments to the existing Engineering services Agreement be executed 
separately. This will help separate the invoicing and grant reimbursement processes. 

Staff is recommending adoption of the proposed Resolution allowing PACE Engineering to 
perform the Utility Rate Study.  

Attachments: 

1. Proposed Resolution 

2. Amendment #2 

3. Task Order 2016-05 

 

X Regular  
 Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 36



RESOLUTION NO. CCR-16-37 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA APPROVING AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF MT. SHASTA AND PACE ENGINEERING, INC. 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO PERFORM A UTILITY RATE STUDY  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mt. Shasta has solicited for and received formal Statements of Qualifications from 
Engineering firms to provide engineering consultant services for the City of Mt. Shasta; and 
 
WHEREAS, four Statement of Qualifications were received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Engineering firm of Pace Engineering, Inc. is selected as the best qualified to provide 
Utility Rate Study engineering services to the City of Mt. Shasta; and 
 
WHEREAS, a scope of work and proposal in the amount of $73,372 was negotiated; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff is recommending the execution of separate water and sewer utility rate study Agreement 
amendments for Pace Engineering, Inc. to provide engineering consultant services to the City of Mt. Shasta 
to perform a Utility Rate Study.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendments to existing Professional Services Agreements For 
Utility Rate Study Services Between The City of Mt. Shasta And Pace Engineering, Inc. in the amount of 
$73,372 
 
The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of September, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
DATED: 
 
                                                            CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
 
                                                                    ______________________________ 
                                                                           Jeffrey Collings, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
 Kathryn M. Wilson, City Clerk 
 
       

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 37



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 38



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 39



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 40



Planning Department Staff Report 
Monday, September 12, 2016 

Project Number: 2016.11 

Project Title:   Roseburg Property Development Report 

Type of Project: Development Plan 

Prepared by:  Juliana Lucchesi, City Planner 

Background: 

The Roseburg property, also referred to as “The Landing”, is a 127.5 acre Planned 

Development. The majority of the development is owned by the City of Mt. Shasta. The 

property development plan was approved and the property annexed in 2000 (CCO-00-

01). Part of the annexation process was the creation of a development plan and 

Environmental Impact Report. The development plan outlines land use, development 

standards, and on-site infrastructure improvements.  

The land use aspect of the development plan created seven development areas with 

permitted uses, administrative uses, and conditional use situations; which are illustrated 

in Attachments 1 through 7. The permitted land uses are those which have been approved 

prior to development and assessed in the Environmental Impact Report. If a development 

is brought to the Planning Department, the Planner uses discretion to locate the permitted 

use in the proper development area (City of Mt. Shasta Municipal Code §18.16.020 Table 

11).  Administrative uses are approved through consultation with the Planning 

Department. Finally, conditional uses must file a conditional use permit application and 

gain approval from the City of Mt. Shasta Planning Commission. All levels of review and 

approval are appealable to the City Council. 

General Plan Connection: 

The General Plan Land Use Element contains extensive detail on the application of 

“Mixed Use” planning concepts to the Roseburg property. Mixed use planning, or Planned 

Development, is concerned with combining land use types like commercial, light 

1City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 41



industrial, and residential to create a flexible mixture of uses. The purpose of promoting 

this type of zoning is to encourage a mixture of economic development opportunities.  

The General Plan focuses on utilizing the mixed use planning approach on the Roseburg 

and Orchard properties. The Orchard property is an additional property purchased by the 

City from Roseburg Forest Products. The two properties are meant to serve as examples 

of the Planned Development zone capabilities. The Planned Development zone can be 

applied to other parcels within the City limits with Planning Department assistance.   

Development Process: 

The development process for the Roseburg Property is similar to other developments 

within the City limits (Attachment 9). Each development begins with the Planning 

Department. The developer and the City Planner work to find an appropriate area within 

the Planned Development that permits the intended use.  

For example, a restaurant would like to develop on the Roseburg property. The Planner 

would identify development zones 1, 2, and 5 as appropriate areas. The discussion would 

continue until a specific property is identified by the developer and Planner that meets the 

developer and City needs.  

The second step of the process is a financial agreement between the developer and the 

City. Since the City owns the majority of the Planned Development, the City will determine 

an appropriate agreement indicating if the land is sold or leased to the developer. The 

City and developer may also outline other development terms. Once an agreement is 

reached the developer moves to on-site development. 

The On-site development process is similar to the current development process. The 

developer would submit a comprehensive plan outlining architectural design, 

landscaping, sewer and water hook-ups, parking, and building plans. The plan will be 

reviewed and approved by the Planning, Fire, Public Works, and Building Departments 

to determine if they meet City development standards. A final inspection is scheduled by 

the developer post construction to ensure compliance with all pre-development plans and 

development standards.     

2City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 42



Environmental Review: 

The 1998 development plan was approved by the City Council, and subsequently moved 

into the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Environmental Impact Report 

process. The Environmental Impact Report (EIR) assessed the proposed land use and 

development standards presented in the plan.  

The EIR found that the development of the Roseburg property would result in significant 

environmental impacts and would require mitigation measures for the following 

categories; 

• Circulation: Increased development, especially light industrial and tourism related,

would result in heavier traffic on South Mount Shasta Boulevard

• Noise: The location of buildings within 180 feet of the railroad tracks could

experience some vibration and noise issues. The increase in traffic due to

development will affect the noise environment of existing neighborhoods and on-

site on the north end of the development, but this is unavoidable.

• Air Quality: Increased traffic will result in an increase of CO2 and criteria pollutants

• Biological Resources: There are a number of specially protected bird species on

the eastside of the Roseburg property development

• Community Services: The eastside of the Roseburg property contains and is in

proximity to heavily wooded areas, which could result in a wildfire hazard. The

construction of multi-story buildings would result in the Fire Department requiring

new equipment. ( i.e. ladder truck). An increase in light industrial and development

on-site will require more police protection services.

• Water and Wastewater Systems: The Roseburg property does not currently have

on-site or off-site access to adequate water and wastewater systems.

• Cultural Resources: The abandoned service station on the south end of the

property may hold historic value.

• Risk of Upset: In reference to the possibility of Brownfields, there may be pollutants

located on-site that may be harmful to the community.

3City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 43



The discussed environmental impacts include a number of mitigation measures 

discussed in the development plan. The current activity on-site is in conjunction with the 

Risk of Upset mitigation recommendations.  

Attachments: 

1. Roseburg Land Use Plan

2. – 7. Roseburg Land Division Information Sheets

8. Roseburg Development Process

4City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 44



Pond VII

VIVI V

IV

III

II

I

I

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE PARK
CITY OF

MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

Union Pacif c Railroad

KEY

Existing Roadways

Potential Roadways

Pedestrian/Cyclist Trailways

Zoning Boundaries

Roman Numerals Indicate Development Zones

Original land use map 
prepared by Pacific 
Municipal Consultants 
(1998)

Be
ar

 S
pr

in
gs

 
R

oa
dMountain View 

Drive

Lo
ve

ta
 L

an
e

Feet
0 50 100 300200

5

Attachment 1

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 45



Development Area I

Permitted Uses
• Arboretums and

horticulture gardens
• Art galleries &

exhibit centers
• Automobile rental

agencies, offces only
• Barber and beauty

shops
• Bicycle rental shops
• Eating and drinking

establishments
• Gift, novelty, and

souvenir shops
• Hotels, motels, and

accessory shops
• Indoor commercial

recreational facilities
such as ice skating
rinks, amusement
centers, & bowling
alleys

• Travel agencies, ticket
agencies

• Theaters, dance halls,
community assembly
halls

• Any other visitor-
serving uses as
determined by the
City Council to serve
the purpose of the
area

Development Area II
Permitted Uses
• Accountants, attorneys, 

business and management
consultants and other
professional offces

• Administrative or
executive offces of any
type of business

• Architects, landscape
architects, planners, 
engineers and surveyors, 
geologists, graphic
designers, interior
designers, not including
retail sales on premises

• Barber shops and beauty
salons

• Eating and drinking
establishments

• Employment agencies, 
travel agencies, and airline
ticket agencies

• Financial institutions
including banks, savings
and loan associations, 
fnance companies, and
credit unions

• Government buildings and
service facilities, excluding
storage equipment, repair, 
or warehouses

• Health and exercise clubs
• Indoor commercial

recreational facilities
such as ice skating rinks, 
amusement centers, &
bowling alleys

• Insurance brokers and
services, investment
brokers, real estate
brokers and offces, 
and title and escrow
companies

• Medical, dental, and health
related offces and clinics

• Oculists, opticians, and
optometrists

• Prescription pharmacies
• Schools and studios for

arts, crafts, photography, 
music, and dance

• Theaters, dance halls, 
community assembly halls

Development Area IV

Permitted Uses
• Bakeries and bottling

plants
• Contractor shops,

offces and storage
where entirely within
completely enclosed
buildings

• Furniture and major
appliance sales

• Home furnishing sale
• Microbreweries
• New and used

automobile sales and
service centers

• Recreational vehicle
and boat sales and
service centers

• Civil engineering and
testing frms

• Wholesale
distribution

Development Area III

Permitted Uses
• Cabinet shops

and furniture
manufacturing

• Ceramic products
manufacturing, using
only pulverized clay
and kilns fred by
electricity or gas

• Cold storage
• Die and pattern

making
• Machine shop
• Manufacturing,

assembly, and repair
of:
Aircraft accessories
and parts
Electronic and
computer equipment
and components
Business machines
Electrical devices
Garments
Household appliance
Machine Tools
Medical instruments,
devices, and
equipment
Accessories and
parts for motor
vehicles, motorcycles,
recreational vehicles,
boats and trailers,
Outdoor and indoor
recreational clothing
and equipment

• Small miscellaneous
consumer products
Sheet metal shops
Soils engineering and
testing frms
Upholstering shops
Wholesale
distribution

Development Area V

Permitted Uses
• Arboretums and

horticulture gardens
• Art galleries &

exhibit centers
• Automobile rental

agencies, offces only
• Barber and beauty

shops
• Bicycle rental shops
• Eating and drinking

establishments
• Gift, novelty, and

souvenir shops
• Hotels, motels, and

accessory shops
• Indoor commercial

recreational facilities
such as ice skating
rinks, amusement
centers, & bowling
alleys

• Travel agencies, ticket
agencies

• Theaters, dance halls,
community assembly
halls

• Any other visitor-
serving uses as
determined by the
City Council to serve
the purpose of the
area

Development Area VI

Permitted Uses
• Recreational trails
• Habitat and wetland

restoration area,
wetland mitigation
bank

• Private wildlife,
wilderness preserve

Development Area VII

Permitted Uses
• Open Space
• Wetland restoration

and enhancement area,
wetland mitigation
bank

• Natural community
creation and
enhancement area

• Trails, paths for
pedestrians and
bicycles

6City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 46



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

Development Area I

H
I

JK

E F
G

D
CBA

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

7City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 47



Development Area I -  32.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 1 is to provide for light commercial and offce uses 
that will serve the Mt. Shasta community and nearby towns, with emphasis on highway 
and visitor-serving commercial uses.

Permitted Uses
Arboretums and horticulture gardens, 
art galleries, exhibit centers, automobile 
rental agencies (offces only), barber and 
beauty shops, bicycle rental shops, eating 
and drinking establishments, gift, novelty 
and souvenir shops, hotels, motels, and 
accessory shops, indoor commercial 
recreational facilities such as ice skating 
rinks, amusement centers, bowling alleys, 
travel agencies, ticket agencies, theaters, 
dance halls, community assembly halls, 
and any other visitor serving uses as 
determined by the City Council to 
serve the purpose of this Area.

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning 
Department can issue permits for 
antennas and communications facilities 
on undeveloped lots.

Conditional Uses
Permitted uses in DA-II, retail business 
establishments permitted in the C-1 
zone, as set forth in the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance, and service stations. 

Sub-Development Areas
Development Area 1 is separated into 
multiple separate sub-development 
areas. The sub-development areas are 
meant as suggestions to the division of 
each Development Area to encourage 
multiple uses within the area and 
encourage appropriate scaling of individual 
developments.

Division A -1.5 acres

Division B - 3.0 acres

Division C - 3.5 acres

Division D - 2.0 acres

Division E - 2.0 acres

Division F - 1.0 acres

Division G - 2.0 acres

Division H - 6.0 acres (Not City 
Owned)

Division I - 3.5 acres

Division J - 6.0 acres

Division K - 2.0 acres

8

Attachment 2

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 48



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

A

C
B

Development Area II

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

9City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 49



Development Area II - 8.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 2 is to provide for light commercial and offce uses 
that will serve the Mt. Shasta community and nearby towns.

Permitted Uses
Accountants, attorneys, business and management consultants and other professional offces, 
administrative or executive offces of any type, architects, landscape architects, planners, engineers, 
surveyors, geologists, graphic designers, interior designers, barber shops, beauty salons, eating 
and drinking establishments, employment agencies, travel agencies, airline ticket sales, fnancial 
institutions, government buildings and service facilities, health and exercise clubs, indoor 
commercial recreational facilities such as ice skating rinks and amusement centers, insurance 
brokers and services, real estate brokers, medical, dentist, and health related offces, oculists, 
opticians, optometrists, prescription pharmacies, schools and studios for arts, crafts, photography, 
music, and dance, theaters, dance halls, and community assembly halls. 

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue permits for antennas and communications 
facilities on undeveloped lots and accessory uses and buildings customarily appurtenant to 
permitted uses.

Conditional Uses
Commercial laundries, community care facilities, child care centers, hotels, motels and accessory 
shops and other visitor serving uses, light industrial uses that meet the performance standards set 
forth for the site as a whole and that are not incompatible with the permitted uses in this Area, 
outdoor commercial entertainment and recreation facilities, printing and publishing or lithographic 
shops, public and quasi-public uses, and veterinary clinics subject to special conditions. 

Sub-Development Areas
Development Area 2 is separated into three separate sub-development areas. 
The sub-development areas are meant as suggestions to the division of each 
Development Area to encourage multiple uses within the area and encourage 
appropriate scaling of individual developments.

Division A - 5.0 acres

Division B - 2.0 acres

Division C - 1.5 acres

10

Attachment 3

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 50



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

Development Area III

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

11City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 51



Development Area III - 3.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 3 is to provide for light industrial uses such as 
manufacturing, processing, assembly, and storage. Outdoor manufacturing is not permitted 
in this area. Uses that may include outdoor storage and the emission of visible gases, 
steam, heat, vibration, particulates, and noise must comply with City standards. 

Permitted Uses
Cabinet shops and furniture manufacturing, ceramic products manufacturing using 
only pulverized clay and kilns fred by electricity or gas, cold storage plants, die and 
pattern making, machine shops, sheet metal shops, soils engineering and testing frms, 
upholstering shops, wholesale distribution manufacturing, assembly and repair of: 
aircraft accessories and parts, electronic and computer equipment and components, 
business machines, electrical devices, garments, household appliances, machine 
tools, medical instruments, devices, and equipment, accessories and parts for motor 
vehicles, motorcycles, recreational vehicles, motorcycles, boats, and trailers, outdoor 
and indoor recreational clothing and equipment, and small miscellaneous consumer 
products. 

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue permits for antennas and 
communications facilities on undeveloped lots, administrative offces directly related 
to the activity on site, guard offces, excluding those with living facilities, employee 
cafeterias, and outdoor storage areas. 

Conditional Uses
Commercial laundries, heavy equipment sales and rental, repair and painting of motor 
vehicles, recreational vehicles, boats, farm equipment, and motorcycles, mini-storage 
and warehousing, research offces and laboratories for the conduct of scientifc 
research, eating and drinking establishments, and trade schools and training centers. 

12

Attachment 4

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 52



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

Development Area IV

D

C

B

A

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

13City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 53



Development Area IV - 12.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 4 is to provide a variety of uses that serve the 
Mt. Shasta community, some of which may not be considered appropriate in other 
development areas at the Roseburg Site. In some portions of Development Area 4, 
industrial uses permitted in Development Area 3 are allowed here.

Permitted Uses
Bakeries, bottling plants, contractor shops, offces, 
storage where entirely within completely enclosed 
building, furniture and major appliance sales, home 
furnishing sales, microbreweries, new and used 
automobile sales and service centers, recreational 
vehicle and boat sales and service centers, civil 
engineering and testing frms, and wholesale 
distribution.

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue 
permits for antennas and communications facilities 
on undeveloped lots and accessory uses and buildings 
customarily adjacent to permitted uses

Conditional Uses
Eating and drinking establishments, hotels and 
motels with no accessory shops, outdoor and indoor 
entertainment and recreation facilities, printing and 
publishing or lithographic shops, public and quasi-
public uses appropriate in a commercial/offce area, 
uses generally and conditionally in DA-III may be 
permitted on sites adjacent to DA-III. 

Sub-Development Areas
Development Area 4 is separated 
into four separate sub-development 
areas. The sub-development areas 
are meant as suggestions to the 
division of each Development 
Area to encourage multiple uses 
within the area and encourage 
appropriate scaling of individual 
developments.

Division A - 4.0 acres

Division B - 3.0 acres

Division C - 2.5 acres

Division D - 3.0 acres (Not 
City Owned)

14

Attachment 5

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 54



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

Development Area V

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

15City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 55



Development Area V - 24.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 5 is to provide for commercial uses primarily orient-
ed towards visitor services.

Permitted Uses
Hotels, motels, and accessory shops (such as gift shops, beauty shops, etc.) and 
any other visitor-serving uses as determined by the City Council to serve the 
purpose of the Area, eating and drinking establishments, resorts, conference 
centers, theaters, dance halls, nightclubs, indoor recreational facilities such 
as ice skating rinks, amusement centers, schools and studies for arts, crafts, 
photography, music, and dance, arboretums and horticulture gardens, and art 
galleries, exhibit centers.

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue permits for antennas and 
communications facilities on undeveloped lots and accessory uses and buildings 
customarily adjacent to permitted uses

Conditional Uses
Uses permitted in Development Area 2, outdoor commercial entertainment 
and recreation facilities, and health and exercise clubs.

16

Attachment 6

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 56



FILE: \\fileraq\XserveRAID\CompanyFiles\02-Forms\Map Templates\8.5 x 11 Generic_P.mxd

Development Area VI &VII

VI

VII

LAND USE PLAN
FOR THE

ROSEBURG COMMERCE 
PARK

CITY OF
MOUNT SHASTA
SISKIYOU COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2016

Feet
0 50100 300200

Union Pacif c Railroad

South Mt. Shasta Boulevard

Interstat
e 5

17City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 57



Development Area VII - 13.5 Acres

The purpose of Development Area 7 is to provide a site for a park, along with recreational 
uses appropriate to a park. Another purpose is to provide an area for the promotion 
and enhancement of the natural and cultural resources of the Mt. Shasta community and 
region.

Permitted Uses
Wetland Restoration, natural community creation and enhancement area, and trails

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue permits for facilities to accommodate 
park users, such as: restrooms, picnic areas, playgrounds, park benches, interpretive trails 
and signage, parking lots, outdoor lighting, and public telephones. Other administrative 
uses are water features with fsh, outdoor sports felds and activities, amphitheater, and 
historical displays.

Conditional Uses
Seasonal or year-round concessions selling goods and services, arboretums and 
horticulture gardens, and drainage channels, watercourses, spreading grounds, and basins

Development Area VI - 15.0 Acres

Development of Area 6 is diffcult due to the presence of hillside slopes exceeding 25% 
and jurisdictional wetlands. Development Area 6 has been set aside for open space and 
recreational uses.

Permitted Uses
Recreational trails, habitat and wetland restoration, and wildlife, wilderness preserve

Administrative Uses
Administratively the Planning Department can issue permits for interpretive trails and 
signage, offces, and storage sheds.

Conditional Uses
Uses that are essential to adjacent Development Area 5 and visitor center adjacent to 
permitted uses.

18

Attachment 7

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 58



Development Process

Land Use Designation

Financial Agreement

On-site Design Process

Final Inspection

Functional 
Development

19

Attachment 8

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 59



 
 

City Council Agenda Item # 10 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 12, 2016 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Rod Bryan, Public Works Director  

Subject:  Mt. Shasta Blvd. Guardrail Project Bid Award 
 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests the City Council approve the proposed Resolution awarding the bid 
for the Big Lakes Water Line Replacement Project to Shasta Services, Inc. dba Timberworks.  
 
Background & Summary: 

On Friday August 26, 2016 bids were received for the Mt. Shasta Boulevard Guardrail Project. 

The lowest and sole bidder was Apex Fence Co. Inc. with a bid amount of $99,425. Pace 
Engineering has evaluated the bids and  is recommending that the City award the Construction 
Contract to Apex Fence Co. Inc. 

This is a Caltrans STIP reimbursable project. The City was previously allocated $34,000 for the 
Environmental Studies and Permits (E&P), and Plans Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) 
phases of the project.  The total Construction budget allocated in May of this year was 
$207,000, which includes costs for construction Engineering as well as a contingency.  

Attachments: 

1. Recommendation of Award 
2. Bid Summary 
3. Proposed Resolution 

 
 
 

 

    
 
 
 

X Regular  
 Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 60



RESOLUTION NO. CCR-16-39 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA AWARDING THE 2016 MT. SHASTA BOULEVARD 

GUARDRAIL PROJECT CONTRACT  TO  APEX FENCE CO.  INC.  IN  THE  AMOUNT  OF  
$99,425  AND  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE AGREEMENT  

AND  ISSUE  A  NOTICE  TO  PROCEED  
 
 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Mt. Shasta Boulevard Guardrail Project was advertised according to formal bidding 
procedures and sealed bids were opened in public on Friday August 26, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the lowest bid was received from Apex Fence Co. Inc. in the amount of $99,425; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is being funded by State-Only Funding received from the State of California 
Department of Transportation and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Engineer found the lowest bidder’s proposal to be correct and acceptable. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Council hereby awards the contract in the amount of $99,425 to Apex Fence Co. Inc.  
2. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the contract documents on behalf of 

 the City. 
3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to issue a Notice to Proceed upon satisfactory 

 completion and execution of all contract documents by the Contractor. 
 
The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of September, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
DATED:   September 12, 2016 
 
                                                           
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF MT. SHASTA: 
       
__________________________    __________________________ 
 Kathryn M. Wilson, Deputy City Clerk   Jeffrey Collings, Mayor   

City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 61



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 62



City Council Regular Meeting September 12, 2016 63


	9.12.2016  agenda
	8.22.16 DRAFT minutes
	8_18_16 Coffee with Council DRAFT minutes
	June242016 FINAL ATC minutes
	Staff Report warrants
	expenditure support 91216
	Staff Report_Audit services 16 17 18
	Audit engagement letter
	RESO audit services
	Rate.study.agrmt.2016.SR.v.2.0
	Rate.Study.Agrmt.2016.Reso.v.2.0
	Engr-Amendment-2_9-3-16
	TO-2016-05-PACE-signed
	Planning_Landing_SR
	2016.11 Roseburg SR
	Landing Map
	Sector 1 Info
	Sector 2 Info
	Sector 3 Info
	Sector 4 Info
	Sector 5 Info
	Sector 7 Info
	DmntPro

	Guardrail project.bid.award.SR
	Guardrail project.bid.award.reso
	Guardrail project bid opening
	Recommendation of Award - Ltr



